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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF PIPELINE SAFETY 
WASHINGTON, DC 20590 

 
________________________________________  
In the matter of:                       ) 
                         ) 
Enbridge Storage (Cushing) L.L.C.,                     )     CPF No. 4-2015-5016 
a subsidiary of Enbridge Energy Partners, LP,       )               
                                                                                ) 
Respondent.                        ) 
________________________________________)  

PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION OR, IN THE ALTERNATIVE,  
PETITION TO AMEND LANGUAGE OF THE FINAL ORDER 

AND 
BRIEF IN SUPPORT 

Respondent Enbridge Storage (Cushing) L.L.C., a subsidiary of Enbridge Energy 
Partners, LP  (“Respondent”), through its counsel, Rooney Rippie & Ratnaswamy LLP, submits 
its Petition for Reconsideration or, in the alternative, Petition to Amend Language of the Final 
Order, and Brief in Support, pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 190.243.    

By letter dated March 24, 2017, the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration (“PHMSA”) transmitted to Respondent a Final Order in the matter of CPF 
No. 4-2015-5016 (the “Final Order”), which Respondent received on March 31, 2017.  
Respondent files this Petition within twenty days of receipt of the Final Order. 

In this Petition, Respondent respectfully seeks reconsideration by the Associate 
Administrator for Pipeline Safety of specific language to support two factual findings in the Final 
Order regarding the assessment of the civil penalty, as set forth in more detail herein.  
Respondent is not seeking reconsideration of the finding that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 
195.214, the amount of the penalty, or the compliance order.  Rather, Respondent simply 
requests that the Associate Administrator amend the language in the Final Order regarding the 
two factual findings.     

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 

1. Following an inspection of Respondent’s Cushing Terminal in Cushing, 
Oklahoma, PHMSA transmitted to Respondent a Notice of Probable Violation, Proposed Civil 
Penalty and Proposed Compliance Order dated August 25, 2015 (the “NOPV”).  In the NOPV, 
PHMSA alleged that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.214, by failing to comply with 
welding procedures.  PHMSA proposed a civil penalty in the amount of $40,300, and issued a 
compliance order requiring Respondent to follow through with certain corrective actions.  The 
NOPV is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
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2. Respondent responded to the NOPV by letter dated October 2, 2015 (the 
“Response”).  In the Response, Respondent explained in detail why it believed it operated in 
compliance with 49 C.F.R. § 195.214.  Respondent also asserted that the penalty should be 
adjusted downwards based on mitigating factors.  Respondent also sought clarification of the 
terms of the compliance order, but otherwise did not object to the proposed corrective actions.  
The Response is attached hereto as Exhibit B.1 

3. The Associate Administrator issued the Final Order on March 24, 2017.  The 
Associate Administrator upheld the finding that Respondent violated 49 C.F.R. § 195.214, 
reduced the civil penalty to $33,100, and clarified the scope of the corrective actions.  The Final 
Order is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

4. While Respondent respectfully believes the position set forth in its Response is 
legally correct, Respondent accepts the Associate Administrator’s determination and is not 
challenging the substance of the Final Order.  Accordingly, Respondent paid the civil penalty in 
full on April 11, 2017.  Respondent also began undertaking necessary steps to comply with the 
compliance order.  Respondent is already in communication with the Southwest Region 
regarding compliance.    

STANDARD FOR PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

5. The standard for a Petition for Reconsideration is set forth in 49 C.F.R. § 
190.243, which provides that a Respondent may petition the Associate Administrator for 
reconsideration of a Final Order.  Respondent meets the requirements to seek reconsideration of 
specific language to support the two factual findings in the Final Order. 

AMENDMENT OF LANGUAGE IN THE FINAL ORDER 

6. In the Response, Respondent argued for a reduction in the penalty based on a 
reassessment of the mitigating factors set forth in 49 C.F.R. § 190.225.  In the Final Order, the 
Associate Administrator agreed with Respondent’s argument that a reduction of the civil penalty 
was justified based on history of prior offenses, disagreed with other arguments raised by 
Respondent, and reduced the civil penalty from $40,300 to $33,100. 

7. Respondent accepts the Associate Administrator’s ultimate findings regarding 
the mitigating factors at issue, but specifically requests that PHMSA amend the language 
regarding two of the mitigating factors:  economic benefit and good faith.   

8. PHMSA’s discussion of economic benefit is on page 10 of the Final Order.  In 
the Response, Respondent argued that it did not derive an economic benefit, and OPS countered 
that it believed that Respondent did derive an economic benefit.  The Associate Administrator 
found that Respondent “probably realized an economic benefit.”  However, the Associate 
Administrator then specifically found that economic benefit was not considered in the proposed 
penalty.  As a result, the Associate Administrator held that “the proposed penalty was not 

                                                 
1 The exhibits originally attached to Respondent’s Response to the NOPV are not included in Exhibit B 
hereto. 
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designed to offset any economic benefit, and the penalty should not be mitigated on those 
grounds.”  Respondent accepts the holding that the civil penalty should not be adjusted based on 
economic benefit, but respectfully requests that PHMSA amend the Final Order to remove the 
gratuitous reference that Respondent probably realized an economic benefit.  This finding is 
entirely irrelevant to the determination on the civil penalty, unnecessarily depicts Respondent in 
a negative light regarding a point that is specifically in contention, and can easily be 
misinterpreted, as this Final Order is a matter of public record.  Given that economic benefit was 
not taken into account in the original proposed penalty, Respondent respectfully suggests that it 
was unwarranted to make a finding on economic benefit in this manner.  This finding can be 
corrected by simply removing the reference, as follows: 

a. Current Language: 

“I find that Respondent probably realized an economic benefit by 
not removing the work done on the first part of the welding and 
simply completing the work using a different procedure. 
However, economic benefit was not considered in the proposed 
civil penalty.  Accordingly, the proposed penalty was not 
designed to offset any economic benefit, and the penalty should 
not be mitigated on those grounds.” 

b. Proposed Language: 

“Economic benefit was not considered in the proposed civil 
penalty.  Accordingly, the proposed penalty was not designed to 
offset any economic benefit, and the penalty should not be 
mitigated on those grounds.” 

9. PHMSA’s discussion of good faith is also on page 10 of the Final Order.  In the 
Response, Respondent argued that it made a good faith interpretation of the welding regulation.   
The Associate Administrator disagreed, holding that Respondent’s interpretation of the 
regulation does not qualify for a good faith reduction in the penalty.  However, the Associate 
Administrator went on to state that the Respondent’s action of removing a welding crew due to a 
confined space violation was not acting in good faith because Respondent was required to 
remove the welding crew.  Respondent respectfully states that the removal of the welding crew 
for non-compliance with confined space rules was acting in good faith, even if that does not 
qualify for a good faith reduction in the civil penalty.  The comment by the Associate 
Administrator of not acting in good faith for removing a welding crew that violated confined 
space rules does not make sense on its face and, therefore, will almost certainly be 
misinterpreted.  Furthermore, this finding is completely irrelevant to the determination regarding 
good faith and unnecessarily depicts Respondent in a negative light.  This finding can be 
corrected by simply removing the reference, as follows:   

a. Current Language: 

“When considering the good faith of Respondent in attempting to 
comply with the pipeline safety regulations, PHMSA looks at 
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whether the operator made a reasonable interpretation of the 
requirement.  Complying with pipeline safety regulations by 
removing a welding crew due to a confined space violation is not 
acting in good faith. The operator is required to remove a crew 
in these circumstances.  Respondent's interpretation that the 
regulation permitted the mixing of two different welding 
procedures is not reasonable because neither the welding 
procedures nor the regulation permitted this conduct.  In addition, 
this compromised the regulations' safety purpose. To the extent 
Respondent believed the regulation permitted different welding 
procedures to be combined along the same seam, Respondent's 
interpretation was unreasonable and does not justify reducing the 
penalty.” 

b. Proposed Language: 

“When considering the good faith of Respondent in attempting to 
comply with the pipeline safety regulations, PHMSA looks at 
whether the operator made a reasonable interpretation of the 
requirement. Respondent's interpretation that the regulation 
permitted the mixing of two different welding procedures is not 
reasonable because neither the welding procedures nor the 
regulation permitted this conduct.  In addition, this compromised 
the regulations' safety purpose. To the extent Respondent 
believed the regulation permitted different welding procedures to 
be combined along the same seam, Respondent's interpretation 
was unreasonable and does not justify reducing the penalty.” 
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CONCLUSION 

10. For the foregoing reasons, Respondent Enbridge Storage (Cushing) L.L.C., a 
subsidiary of Enbridge Energy Partners, LP respectfully requests that the Associate 
Administrator grant its Petition for Reconsideration and amend the language of the Final Order 
as proposed herein.   
 
Dated: April 19, 2017                 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Counsel for Enbridge Storage (Cushing) L.L.C., 

a subsidiary of Enbridge Energy Partners, LP 

 

 
      

Darren J. Hunter 
Rooney Rippie & Ratnaswamy LLP 

350 W. Hubbard, Suite 600 
Chicago, Illinois  60654 

(312) 447-2818 – Telephone 
(312) 447-2899 – Facsimile 

darren.hunter@r3law.com 
 

Cc: phmsachiefcounsel@dot.gov  
Ben Fred  
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